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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of PI Life Science Research Limited

Report on the Audit of standalone financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of PI Life Science Research Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
ended on that date, and notes to the standalone financial statements including material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 2025, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities inder those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICATI”) read together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are réquired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
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based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure -A”, a statement on
the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

.We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for certain matters in respect of audit trail as
stated in the paragraph 2(i)(vi) below;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors, taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly reporting requirement under the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025.
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g) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith in
respect of audit trail are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of
the Act and paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014,

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” to this report wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on March 31, 2025, which would impact
its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company;

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in notes to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
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(edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software, except that the audit log is not maintained in case of modification, if
any, by users with specific access rights; and was not enabled to capture any direct changes at
the database level. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not notice any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.,

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For S S Kothari Mehta & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. OOU?SGC:NS 1
® [

2
AMIT GOEL

Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2025
UDIN: 25500607 BMLATH1619
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report dated May 08, 2025, on the standalone financial
statements of PI Life Science Research Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025.

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

()(a)(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(1)(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(1)(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records,
there are no immovable property, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.

(1)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right of use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(1)(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(a) The Company does not have any inventory, Accordingly, provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial
institutions during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, during the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of
the Company, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order iS’_IFIQ_E applicable to the Company.

A MER
s L IVIE .
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(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not presctibed
maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the Company’s
activities. Hence, the provisions of clause 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, duty of
customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(vii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no statutory dues relating to Income-Tax or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion, based on audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) In our opinion, based on audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing or interest thereon due to any lender during the
yeat. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or government authority.

(ix)(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures defined under the Act.

(ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(x)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the Company
has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including debt
instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
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or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. v

(xi)(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(xi)(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act, has been filed by cost auditor/
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, the requirements for reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(xiv) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system
under the provisions of Section 138 of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) and
3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of
Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of Indja Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtained
a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group does
not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the
information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately preceding
financial year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 28 to the standalone financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
" accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there
are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act or
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of the standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For S S Kothari Mehta & CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N 500441

N Qw

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membershlp No. 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2025
UDIN: 25500607BMLATH1619
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report dated May 08, 2025 on the standalone financial
statements of PI Life Science Research Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of PI Life Science
Research Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
“the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the standalone financial statements of the
Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these standalone
financial statements

Page 10 of 11




5S KOTHARI MEHTA
- &COLLPT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note.

For S S Kothari Mehta & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441

Ak Ge?

o

RMER2

N &
S
-

2 AMIT GOEL
o / Partner
—" Membetship No. 500607
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 08, 2025

UDIN: 25500607BMLATH1619
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PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6
(i1) Other financial assets 7/
Deferred tax assets 8

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11
Current tax assets 12
Other current assets 13

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital 14
Other equity 15
Total equity

Liabilities -
Non current liabilities

Provisions 16
Total non current liabilities

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Trade payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
(i1) Other financial liabilities 17
Provisions 16
Other current liabilities 18

Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Material accounting policies 3
Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements = —\;

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP Edr and on behglf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accoungants 1 Life Sciengé Research Limited
Firm Reg Mo 000736N/N500441

Rajnish Sapl/

AMIT GOEL

Partner Director Director

M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara

Date: May 8, 2025




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Statement of Standalone Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended

e  March31,2025 M Viarch 31,2024

' _(Audited) _ (Audited)

Revenue from operations 19 6717 68.48
Other income 20 20.04 43.85
Total income 87.21 112.33
Expenses:
Employee benefit expense 21 62 S
Depreciation 22 49 s
Other expense 23 47.67 20,40
Total expenses 52.98 26.07
Profit before tax 34.23 86.26

Income tax expense

Current tax 24 16.98 17.21
Deferred tax (1.79) {2-123}_
Income tax of earlier years - (1.38)
Total tax expense 15.19 13.60
Profit for the year 19.04 72.66

Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.09) (0.14)
Income tax relating to the above item 0.02 0.04
Total comprehensive income for the year 18.97 72.56
Earnings per equity share 25 _
1) Basic (in %) 12.72 4854
2) Diluted (in %) 12.72 4855
Face value per share (in %) 1o 10
Material accounting policies 3

Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP Foyp‘and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants esearch Limited
Firm Reg. 60 ﬂwmmsoocm

s ®
AMIT GOEL Rajnish Sarna Atul Kumar Gupta
Partner Director Director
M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara

Date: May 8, 2025



PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Statement of Standalone Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Eor the year end

(Audi!ed)-

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax 3423 86.26
Adjustments for :-
Depreciation and amortisation expense 049 .95
Impairment in Value of Investment 3232 9.63
Dividend Income - (28.65)
Interest Income on financial assets at amortised cost (20.01) (15.20)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 47.03 52.99
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (9.45) (6.70)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (0.76) (241)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 155 -
Increase / (Decrease) in non-current provisions ’ 52 (0.09)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current financial liabilities LIS (0.97)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (1.02) 0.06
Increase / (Decrease) in current provisions - (0.01)
Cash generated / (used) from operations before tax 38.70 42.87
Income taxes paid, net (F762) (15.99)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities 21.08 26.88
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Investment in Fixed Deposits having more than 3 months original maturity (23.14) (56.76)
Dividend Income - 28165
Interest received 0.47 1520
Net cash generated from investing activities (2417 (12.91)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from Operating and Investing Activities {3 13.97
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid = (29.95)
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities - (29.95)
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating, Investing & Financing Activities (3.0%) (15.98)
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (3.09) (15.98)
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents 05 20.93
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents 186 495
Asat —  Asat
Mareh3t, 2025 SRRl
i) Cash on hand -
ii) Balance with banks :
-In current accounts .86 495
-In fixed deposits - -
Total 1.86. 4.95

The above standalone cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 "Cash Flow Statement”,
Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Account
Firm Reg ~ 0007 lNSD(Jer

‘or and on hehaif of the Board of Directors of
esearch Limited

% Y

AMIT GOEL Rajnish SaV Atul Kufnar Gupta
Partner Director Director

M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara

Date: May 8, 2025




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Balance at the begmmng of the reportmg year 14
Changes in equity share capital during the year

14.97325

14.9

Balance at the end of the reporting year 14.97.325

14.97 14,97,325

b. Other equity

Balance at April 1, 2023 ‘ 5 89.48 277.85 367.33
Profit for the year = 72.66 72.66
Dividend paid - (29.95) (29.95)
Other comprehensive income for the year = (0.10) (0.10)
Total comprehensive income for the year 42.61 42.61
Balance at March 31, 2024 89.48 320.46 409.94
Profit for the year - 19.04 19.04
Other comprehensive income for the year - (0.07) (0.07)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 18.97 18.97
Balance at March 31, 2025 89.48 339.43 428.91

Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these standalone financial statements

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to our report of even date

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Eér and on beh
1 Life Scienc

Firm Reg. No.: 000 MN500441

AMIT GOEL Rajnish Sap
Partner Director

M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 8, 2025

Place: Gurugram

f of the Board of Directors of
esearch Limited

A"

Atul Kumar Gupta
Director

DIN: 10087955
Place: Vadodara



PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

3

a)

b)

Corporate Information

PI Life Science Research Limited (the Company) (CIN : U73100DL2004PLC131109) is a company limited by shares, domiciled in India. The company was
incorporated on December 9, 2004, and has its registered office at Singhal Farm House, Near Airforce Station, Rajokri, New Delhi 110038, The company is
wholly owned subsidiary of PI Industries Limited.

The principal activities of the Company are Research and Development.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
These standalone financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in
Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act to the extent applicable.
These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company in their meeting dated May 8, 2025, and are subject to shareholder approval
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates
(“the functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (‘°), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Current or Non current classification
All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111
to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services provided and time between the rendering of services and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities and contingent assets at the date of financial statements, income and expenses
during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption judgements having the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are:

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

- Recognition of deferred tax assets;

- Useful life and residual value of Property, plant and equipment

- Impairment test of financial and non-financial assets;

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

Material Accounting Policies

Property, plant and equipment

i)  Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ii) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values, and is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) based on the useful life of assets estimated by the
Management which coincide with the life specified under Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, which are as follows:

- Plant and Equipment 15 years
- Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
- Office Equipments

iii) Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognised when no future economic benefit benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset or upon disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue Recognition
a)  Sale of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised over the period of time as per the terms of the contract with customers based on the stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably.




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

¢) Financial Instruments

i)

ii)

iif)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

viii)

Initial recognition

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and
liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables (which do not contain a significant financing component) which are
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss and recognised
in other income.

Equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value. On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an
investment by investment basis. Fair value gains and losses recognised in OCI are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss. However, dividend on such
equity investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (which includes borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments)) are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets

Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments.
Except Trade receivables, the impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected

lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade receivables.

Investment in associates and joint venture
Investment in associates and joint venture is carried at cost less impairment, if any, in the separate financial statements.

4 Other Accounting Policies
a) Employee Benefits

a)

Defined contribution plans

Employees benefits in the form of the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Pension scheme and Superannuation Fund are defined contribution schemes.
Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s sole obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks are borne by the employee. The Company recognises contribution
payable to these schemes as an expense, when employees provide services.




P1 LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

b)

<)

Defined benefit plans

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plans. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed
benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks are borne by the Company. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated by present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

The company provides for its gratuity liability based on actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability as at the Balance Sheet date, based on Projected Unit Credit
Method, carried out by an actuary. The Company contributes to the gratuity fund, which are recognised as plan assets. The defined benefit obligation as reduced
by fair value of plan assets is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense (income)
on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at
the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expense.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.

Compensated absence

The Company provides for accumulation of compensated absences, employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised compensated absences and utilise
them in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per the Company’s policy. The Company records a liability for compensated absences in the period in
which the employee renders the services.

b) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair values for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 - This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

¢) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is not recognised but disclosed in notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is
probable, contingent asset are disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

d) Other Income

i) Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

ii) Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, and is included in other income in statement of profit and loss.




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

e) Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition:
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded into the Company’s functional currency at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Exchange difference:
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

f) Income tax

a)

b)

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year after taking credit of the benefits available under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding tax bases used for taxation purposes.

For operations carried out in tax free units, deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been recognised for the tax consequences of those temporary differences
between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends.

Company also considers decisions of appropriate authorities and legal advice for recognising taxes.

g) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses and for which
discrete financial information is available. The operating segments are based on the Company’s internal reporting structure and the manner in which operating
results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the CODM by the Company.

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statements are prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as explained in the Indian Accounting Standard on Statement of Cash Flows (Ind AS -
7). The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activity of the Company are segregated.

i) Earning per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted Earning per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and machinery  Furniture and  Office equipments Total
fixtures

Gross carrying amount
As at beginning of April 01, 2023 24.49 0.05 0.08 24.62
Additions - - = -
Disposals - - £ -
As at March 31, 2024 24.49 0.05 0.08 24.62
Additions - - - -
Disposals - = = -
As at March 31, 2025 24.49 0.05 0.08 24.62
Acumulated depreciation
As at beginning of April 01, 2023 21.25 0.03 0.07 21.34
Depreciation charge during the year 0.94 0.00 - 0.95
Disposals - - = -
As at March 31, 2024 22.19 0.03 0.07 22.29
Depreciation charge during the year 0.49 0.00 - 0.49
Disposals - B - -
As at March 31, 2025 22.68 0.03 0.07 22.78

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 2.30 0.02 0.01 2.33
As at March 31, 2025 1.81 0.02 0.01 1.84




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Standal Fi ial Staty ts for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

%6 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

In t in equity instr (fully paid up)

Unquoted shares

Investment in Associates at cost

Investement in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited

5,14,500 (31 March, 2024: 5,14,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid.

Investment in Joint Venture at cost
[nvestement in PI Kumiai Private Limited
95,50,000 (31 March, 2024: 95,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid.

[nvestement in PI Flowtech B.V., Netherlands
Nil (31 March, 2024: NA)

Investement in Equity instruments classified at Fair value through Profit or Loss
Investement in P1 Collabo Tech Inc.

343 (31 March, 2024: 343) equity shares @ JPY 291545 each
Less : Provision for diminution in investment in Collabo Tech Inc.

Investement in Infionic India Pvt Ltd

TOTAL

Agpregate amount of un-quoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

7 OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Security deposits
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months
TOTAL

8 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The bal comprises
Deferred tax liabilities
Plant, property and equipment

Other comprehensive income items

- Remeasurements on defined benefit plans

porary differences attributable to:

A
Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits
Impairment of investment
B
Net deferred tax assets TOTAL

Movement in deferred tax:

Deferred tax liabilities

Plant, property and equipment

- Remeasurements on defined benefit plans
Sub- Total (a)

Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits
Impairment of investment

Sub- Total (b)
Net deferred tax assets (a)-(b)

Movement in deferred tax:

Deferred tax liabilities

Plant, property and equipment
Other comprehensive income items
Sub- Total (a)

Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits
[mpairment of investment

Sub- Total (b)
Net deferred tax assets (a)-(b)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

5.15 5.15

95.50 95.50

64.64 64.64

(64.64) - (32.32) 32.32
5.07 5.07

105.72 ) 138.04

170.36 170.36
(64.64) (32.32)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

0.01 0.01

137.68 90.55

137.69 90.56

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

0.48 0.52
0.01 0.03
0.49 0.55
0.37 035
9.25 740
9.62 7.75
10.11 8.30
As at Recognized in P&L  Recognized in OCI As at
April 1, 2024 March 31, 2025
0.52 (0.04) - 048
0.03 - (0.02) 0.01
0.55 (0.04) (0.02) 0.49
(0.35) (0.02) 3 (0.37)
(7.40) (1.85) (9.25)
(7.75) (1.87) - (9.62)
8.30 1.83 (0.02) 10.11
As at Recognized in P&L  Recognized in OCI As at
April 1, 2023 March 31, 2024
0.52 (0.00) - 0.52
(0.01) - 0.04 0.03
0.51 (0.00) 0.04 0.55
(0.47) 0.12 . (0.35)
(5.05) 2.35) (7.40)
(5.52) (2.23) -
6.03 2.23 0.04




PIL

IFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Fi ial S for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 16.15 6.70
16.15 6.70
TOTAL 16.15 6.70
Of the above, trade receivable from related parties are given below: (refer note 26)
Total trade receivable from related parties 16.15 6.70
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts . -
Net trade receivables 16.15 6.70
Aging of trade receivables as at March 31,2025:
O ding for following periods from the due date
Unbilled Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 year Total
months vear
Undisputed trade receivable
Considered good - 16.15 - - - - . 16.15
which have significant increase in credit risk - - . - - - - 5
credit impaired = = - > = = = =
Disputed trade receivable =
Considered good - - - - - - - .
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - =
Total - 16.15 - - - ~ = 16.15
Aging of trade receivables as at March 31,2024:
[¢] ding for following periods from the due date
Unbilled  Not due Less than 6 6 months-1 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 year Total
th vear
Undisputed trade receivable
Considered good - 6.70 - - - - - 6.70
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - . . n
Disputed trade receivable =
Considered good - - s = = - - =
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
credit impaired - - - = = a - y
Total . 6.70 - ; - ym - 6.70
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
i. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks
-Balances in current account 1.86 4.95
TOTAL 1.86 4.95
11 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ;
As at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2025
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months upto 1 year 168.38 171.33
TOTAL 168.38 171.33
12 CURBENT TAX ASSETS 5 _ " )
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Income tax balances ( net of provision ) 1.85 1.22
TOTAL 1.85 1.22
Current
As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
Considered good unless stated otherwise
Advances to vendors
Prepaid expenses 0.08 0.05
Other statutory advances 4,02 3.29
TOTAL 4,10 3.34
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Notes to S
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

4

W

)

=

(an

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised shares

1,20,00,000 (March 31, 2024 : 1,20,00,000) equity shares of ¥10 each (March 31, 2024 : Z 10 each)

TOTAL
Issued Shares

14,97,325 (March 31, 2024 : 14,97,325) equity shares of 210 each (March 31, 2024 : Z 10 each)

Subscribed & Fully Paid up Shares

14,97,325 (March 31, 2024 : 14,97,325) equity shares of 10 each (March 31, 2024 : T 10 each)

Total subscribed and fully paid up share capital

As at March 31, 2025
120.00

120.00

14.97

14.97

14.97
14.97

As at March 31, 2024

120.00

120.00

14.97
14.97

14.97
14.97

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 210 per share (March 31, 2024 Z 10 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Reconciliation of shares ding at the begi

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Equity Shares

ing and at the end of the year

Particulars | Equity Share (No. of Shares) Value of Equity Shares ]
__AsatMarch 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024
Share outstanding at beginning of Year 14,97,325 14,97,325 14.97 1497
Changes during the year - - - -
Share outstanding, at end of Year 14,97,325 14,97,325 14.97 14.97
Subscribed & paid up
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity Shares
2024-25 2023-24
N: f Sharehold
5 Mle— Noof Shares | % of Holding Noof Shares | % of Holding |
Pl Industries Limited and its nominees 14.97,325 | 100 14,97.325 | 100
Equity Shares held by holding Company
| 2024-25 202324 |
Name of Sharcholders No of Shares | % of Holding | No of Shares [ % of Holding |
|PI Industries Limited and its nominees 14.97.325 | 100] 14,97.325 | 100]
The Company has not bought back any shares issued in consideration other than cash in last 5 years.
Shareholding of Promotors
Details of shareholding by promoters As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Number of | Perc Per ge| Number of Shares Per ge total Per ge of chang,
Name of Promoters Shares toial of change number of shares during the year
number of | during the
shares year
P1 Industries Limited 14.97.325 100% - 14 97 325 100% =
OTHER EQUITY
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Securities Premium
Balances at the beginning of the year 89.48 89.48
TOTAL 89.48 89.48
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 32061 277.89
Addition during the year 19.04 72.66
Less: Interim Dividend paid - (29.95)
TOTAL 339.65 320.61
Items of other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.15) (0.05)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (0.07) (0.10)
TOTAL 0.22) (0.15)
TOTAL OTHER EQUITY 428.91 409.94
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16 PROVISIGNS

Provision for employee benefits
Long term compensated absences

Gratuity

17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABTLTITES (CURRENT)
Employee payables
Other payable

18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues payable
19 BREVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations includes
- Scientific & Technical Consultancy Services

20 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost
- Fixed deposits
- Others

Dividend Income

Foreign exchange gain

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident & other funds
Gratuity and long term compensated absences
Employees welfare expenses

32 DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Power, fuel & water

Repairs to machinery

Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Rental charges

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditor remuneration (Refer note no 23 (a))
Provision for diminution in investment
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note no 23 (b))
Legal & professional fees

Bank charges

Business Support services

Non- Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.30 0.23 0.02 0.02
0.95 0.70 - "
TOTAL 1.25 0.93 0.02 0.02
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
029 0.58
0.54 . 0.13
TOTAL 0.83 0.71
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.17 0.19
TOTAL 0.17 0.19
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
67.17 68.48
TOTAL 67.17 68.48
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
20.01 15.20
0.02 -
- 28.65
0.01 -
TOTAL 20.04 43.85
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
4.30 422
0.24 0.22
0.24 0.21
0.04 0.01
TOTAL 4.82 4.66
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
049 0.95
TOTAL 0.49 0.95
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1.62 1.48
1.40 0.90
0.18 0.16
0.47 0.31
1.39 132
0.02 0.01
0.04 0.06
0.09 0.07
32.32 9.63
1.16 0.97
4.63 0.07
0.02 0.01
4.33 547
TCTAL 47.67 20.46
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23(a) Auditors' remuneration

-Statutory audit fees
- Limited review fees
TOTAL

23(b) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE (CSR)

Disclosures of CSR expenditures is given below :

Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
Amount of expenditure incurred

Amount of shortfall for the year

Amount of cummulative shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

0.06
0.03

0.09

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

1.16
1.16

For the year ended

__March 31, 2024

0.04
0.03
0.07

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

0.97
0.97

The Company has contributed required amount to PI1 Foundation Trust amounting to INR 1.16 Mn., which has been spent by P1 Foundation Trust on ongoing projects.

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

a) Income tax expense recognized in profit and loss

Current tax expense

Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustment of current tax for prior year
Total Current tax expense

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Net Deferred tax expense

Total Income tax expense

b) Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax charged to Other comprehensive income

<) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Accounting profit before tax

Tax at India's statutory income tax rate @ 25.168% (March 31, 2024: 25.168%)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years

Dividend

Other Expenses

Income Tax Expense

Effective tax Rate %

25 EARNING PER SHARE

a) Net profit for basic & diluted EPS

b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year
Total number of shares outstanding at the end of the year
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period - Basic
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year - Diluted

Basic )
Diluted (3)
Face value per share (%)

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

16.98

17.21
(1.38)

16.98

15.83

(1.79)

(1.79)

(2.23)
(2.23)

15.19

13.60

For the year ended

March 31, 2025

0,02

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

0.04

0.02

0.04

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
34.23 86.26
8.62 2171
- (1.38)
- (7.21)
6.57 0.48
15.19 13.60
44.38% 15.76%
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
19.04 72.66
14,97,325 14,97,325
14,97,325 14,97,325
14,97,325 14,97,325
14,97,325 14,97,325
12.72 48.53
12,72 48.53
10.00 10.00
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26 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party disclosure, as required by Indian Accounting Standard-24, is as below:

A) List of Related Parties

i) Enterprises which control the entity PI Industries Limited

ii) Enterprises under common control PILL Finance and Investments Limited

PI Japan Co. Limited

PI Bioferma Private Limited

PI Health Sciences Limited

Jivagro Limited

PI Fermachem Private Limited

PI Industries Management Consultancies LLC

iii) Associate & Joint Ventures Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited (Associate)

PI Kumiai Private Limited (Joint Venture)
PI Flowtech B.V. (Subsdiary w.e.f. June 11,2024 till August 27, 2024 and Joint Venture w.e.f. August 28, 2024)

iv) Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives:-

a) Mr. Mayank Singhal Director (till November 07, 2023)

b) Mr. Rajnish Sarna Director

c) Mr. Rajender Dev Kapoor Director

d) Mr. Atul Kumar Gupta Director (w.e.f. November 06, 2023)

v) Enterprises over which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence

Trust PI Foundation

B) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Nature of Transaction 2024-25 2023-24
Transactions during the period Transactions during the period 3
Balance outstanding Dr/ (Cr) Balance outstanding
Received/Sales | Paid/Purchase Received/Sales Paid/Purchase Dr/(Cr)

Transactions with :-

Holding Company- PI Industries Limited
Sale of Services 67.17 - 16.15 68.48 - 6.70
Rent, electricity and other
miscellaneous payment - 3.02 - - 2.80 -
Dividend Paid - - - 29.95

Business Support Services - 0.06 - 0.02 (0.02)

Associate - Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited.
Business Support Services - 433 (1.55) - 547 =

Joint Venture - PI Kumiai Pvt. Ltd. 28.65 - -
Dividend Paid - = =

Trust - PI Foundation

Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution 1.16 - = 0.97 -

¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

20

The services rendered to and from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held (where funded) in separately administered funds. For defined
contribution schemes the amount charged to the statements of profit or loss is the total of contributions payable in the year.

Provident fund

Gratuity Plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, PI Life Science Research Ltd contribute to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan). The Gratuity Plan provides
a lump sum payment to the employees at the time of retirement or resignation (after 5 years of continued services of employment), being an amount based on the respective
employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company. Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised in
full for the benefit obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Long term leave encashment
The ]labllmes for earned leave and sick leave are not e\pectcd to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the penod in which the employees render the related
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28 RATIOANALYSIS
S.No. Ratio Numerator Denominator As at March As at March 31, % Variance Reason for variance
31,2025 2024
1 Current ratio Current asset Current liabilites 74.84 20412 -63% Due to increase in Trade Payables
2 Debt-Equity ratio Borrowing Total equity - - 0% Not applicable
3 Debt Service Coverage ratio  Earnings before interest, taxes, Debt Serive = Long term debt - - 0% Not applicable
depreciation & amortization +Interest payment + lease
4 Return on Equity ratio Profit after tax (PAT) Average equity 4% 18% -76% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Impairment of Financial
Assets).
5 Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory - - 0% Not applicable
6 Receivables Turnover ratio Sales Average receivable 5.88 20.44 -71% Due to increase in average trade
receivables,
7 Payables Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average payable - - 0% NA
8 Net Capital Turnover ratio Sales Net working capital 035 037 -4%
(CA-CL)
9 Net Profit ratio Profit after tax (PAT) Revenue from operation 28% 106% -73% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Impairment of Financial
Assets),
10 Return on Capital Employed ~ Earnings before interest and taxes ( EBIT) Total equity + Borrowings 8% 20% -62% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Irmpairment of Financial
Accets)
11 Return on Investment Earnings before interest and taxes Average total assets 4% 18% -76% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Impairment of Financial
Assets),
1 MIGROLSMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT AGT, 2006
Particular March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Amount Amount Amount Amount

Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as on 31st March

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amounts of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act.

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

Further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of

MSMED Act
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars
FVTPL | FVTOCI [Amortised Cost| FVTPL | FVTOCI [ Amortised Cost
Financial assets
Non-current assets
Investments* 5.07 - 5.15 37.39 - 5.15
Other financial asset - - 137.69 - - 90.56
Current assets
Trade receivable - 16.15 . - 6.70
Cash and cash equivalents - B 1.86 - - 4.95
Other balances with Banks - - 168.38 - - 171.33
5.07 - 329.23 37.39 - 278.69
Financial liabilities
Current
Trade Payables - - 1.55 - 7 -
Other financial liabilities - - 0.83 - - 0.71
- - 2.38 - - 0.71

Excluding investments in associates and Joint ventures of T 100.65 Mn (March 31, 2024 % 100.65 Mn) measured at cost. (Refer note no. 6)

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade payables and current financial liabilities approximate their
carrying amount, largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. Fair value for all other non-current assets is equivalent to the amortised cost,
interest rate on them is equivalent to the market rate of interest.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management framework

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.
= Credit risk

= Liquidity risk

= Market risk

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks:

The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks have low credit risk based on good external credit ratings of
counterparties. Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks has been measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis and reflects
the short maturities of the exposures.

Exposure to credit risk:

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment losses (if any) recognized represent the maximum credit exposure.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash
flows.

(a) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

As At March 31, 2025 Total 3 months or 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
less years

Non-derivative financial liabilitj

Trade Payables 1.55 1.55 - - - -

Other financial liabilities 0.83 0.83 - 2 - <

Total 2.38 2.38 B - - -
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1

Contractual cash flows

As At March 31, 2024 Total 3 months or 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-§ years More than §
less years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities 0.71 0.71 - - - -

Total 0.71 0.71 - - - -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters while optimising the return.

Foreign Currencey risk
The Company is not exposed to any material foreign currency risk as at the reporting date.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Company's investments are primarily in fixed deposits which are short term in nature and do not expose it to interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Fixed-rate instruments

Other non current financial assets 137.69 90.56
Bank balances 168.38 171.33
Total 306.07 261.89

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest
rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Price risk
The Company is not exposed to any price risk as at the reporting date.

. OPERATING SEGMENT

An operating segment is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses and for
which discrete financial information is available. The operating segments are based on the Company’s internal reporting structure and the manner in which
operating results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

The Company has evaluated the applicability of segment reporting and has concluded that since the Company is operating in research and development
activities and is being reviewed by the CODM on the same lines, accordingly the Company has only one reportable business segment.

Revenue:
A. Information about revenues from products and services:

Particulars

For the year ended March 31,2025  For the year ended March 31, 2024
Scientific & Technical Consultancy Services 67.17 68.48
Total 67.17 68.48
B. Geographical areas For the year ended March 31,2025  For the year ended March 31, 2024
India 67.17 68.48

67.17 68.48

C. Revenues from Operations amounted to more than 10% of the Company's revenue from a customer, i.e. Rs. 67.17 Mn (March 31, 2024 - T 68.48 Mn)

The total of non-current assets (other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and investments accounted for using equity method), broken down by
location of the assets, is shown in the table below: 3

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024

India 1.84 2.33
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34 As per the information available with the Management and as certified by them, there is no outstanding Capital and other Commitment as on March 31,
2025 & March 31, 2024.

35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. The Company manages its capital and makes adjustment to it in light of the changes in economic and market conditions.

36 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - AS LEASE
The Company has leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short-term lease' recognition exemptions as per Ind AS 116 for

For the year ended  For the year
March 31,2025  ended March 31,
2024
-Short term Lease payments recognised in Statement of profit and loss 1.39 1.32

37 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and date of authorization of these financial statements.

38 OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(i) The Company do not have any immovable property which is not held in the name of Company.

(ii) The Company has not provided any loan or advances to specified persons.
(iii) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(iv) The Company has not availed any facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
(v) The Company is not declared Wiiful Defaulter by any Bank or any Financial Institution.
(vi) The Company do not have any transactions and balances with struck-off companies.
(vii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(viii) The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(ix) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries);
or
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(x) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
(xi) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(xii) The Company has widely used SAP ERP as its accounting software for maintaining its books of Account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and has operated throughout the year. The audit trail has not been tampered with and has been preserved in accordance with applicable statutory
record retention requirements. At the database level, the audit trail captures only the modified values, including any direct changes made at the database
level. The Company has necessary internal controls and review process to ensure that there are no unauthorized access and unauthorized changes.

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP { the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants 6 i

Firm Reg. No.: 000R36N/N500441

f//

AMIT GOEL Rajnish Sarn;/ Atul Kumar Gupta
Partner Director Director

M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara

Date: May 8, 2025
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of PI Life Science Research Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PI Life Science Research Limited
(herein after referred to as “the Company” or “the Parent” or “ Holding Company” ), its associate company and its
joint venture, which comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), Consolidated cash flow statement and the Consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of the associate, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (Indian Accounting standards) rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind
AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the
Company, its associate and Joint venture as at March 31, 2025, and its Consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), its Consolidated cash flows and the Consolidated changes in equity for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent to the Company, its associate company and its Joint ventures, in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditor in terms of their report referred to in ‘’Other Matters™ paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed and based on the audit reports of other auditors, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of the Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Parent Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of

g . Page 1 of 7
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the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance including Consolidated other
comprehensive income, Consolidated cash flows and Consolidated changes in equity of the Parent Company, its
associate and joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind
AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued thereunder

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and its associate and Joint venture and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Parent Company, its
associate and Joint venture ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company and its associate and Joint venture or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent Company and of its associate and its Joint venture are responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process of the Parent Company, its associate and Joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company, its associate and joint venture which are companies incorporated in India, has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and in preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its associate
and Joint venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Parent Company and its
associate and Joint venture to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Parent Company, its associate and its Joint venture to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have
been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of one associate
company which reflect company’s share of net profit of Rs. 0.98 million for the year ended March 31,
2025. These financial Statements and other information have been audited by other auditor whose
financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s report have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the one associate Company and our report in terms of sub-sections
(3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate Company, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(b) The consolidated financial statements include unaudited financial statements of one joint venture whose
financial statements/financial information reflects company’s share of net profit of Rs. Nil million for the
year ended March 31, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, have not been audited
either by us or by other auditors. These unaudited financial statements/ financial information have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of such joint venture and our report in terms of
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture is based solely
on such unaudited financial statements/financial information. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements/ financial
information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors and financial statements/financial information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A. Asrequired by paragraph 3(xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO 2020”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks included in the CARO report in respect of the standalone financial statements of
the Parent Company, joint venture and associate Company, which are included in these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

B. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
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belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for certain matters in respect of audit trail as stated in
the paragraph 2(i)(vi) below;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors;

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Parent Company, Joint venture and report of the statutory auditor of its associate and joint
venture companies incorporated in India, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Parent Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s report of the Holding Company incorporated in India. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of those companies.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Parent Company has not
paid/provided any managerial remunerations during the year ended March 31, 2025. Hence, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company and not commented upon; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us;

The Parent Company, its associate and Joint venture does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

The Parent Company, its associate and Joint venture did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent
Company, its associate and Joint venture.

. a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its associate company and Joint venture, which are

companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to
us and the other anditor of such associate respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company or any of such Joint venture and associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such associate and its joint
venture (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
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b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its associate company and Joint venture, which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to
us and the other auditor of such associate respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the respective Holding
Company or any of such associates and joint venture from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company
or any of such Joint venture and associate shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances
performed by us and those performed by the auditor of the associate which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the parent Company and its associate and it joint ventures
Companies.

vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that the audit log is not maintained
in case of modification, if any, by users with specific access rights; and was not enabled to capture any direct changes
at the database level. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

In case of an associate company incorporated in India, based on the auditor report of the associate, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and that has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit, they did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

In case of the financial statements of one joint venture incorporated outside India, the reporting requirement under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. Hence, we have not commented on
the same.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Parent Company and above referred associate company and
joint venture Comapany incorporated in India as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N500441

/9 ¥\ .Jf/L*

e
=
{3

e AMIT GOEL

3/ Partner
'Membership No. 500607

Place: New Delhi S

Date: May 0§, 2025

UDIN: 25500607BMLATI5349
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report dated May 08, 2025 to the members of PI Life Science
Research Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section.

Our reporting on the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is not applicable in
respect of one joint venture incorporated outside India.

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement of PI Life Science Research Limited (the
Parent Company) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Parent Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Act
which are associate and its joint venture companies, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, and its associate and its joint venture entity, to whom
reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements is applicable, which are companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor of the one
associate in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fin 1r,i_§L[gporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
G \-n:r-a'.r;j\‘
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statements for extemnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of one associate company, as were audited by the other auditor, the Holding
Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its associate and joint venture companies, have, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of
such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to one associate company, which is
company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 000756N/N5 0411
AMEHTN @
- = r;\

AMIT GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 08, 2025
UDIN: 25500607BMLATI5349
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PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in X Million, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5
Financial assets
(i) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(ii) Investments - Others
(iii) Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

0~ N O

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11
Current tax assets 12
Other current assets 13
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity X
Equity share capital 14
Other equity 15
Total equity

Liabilities

Non current liabilities
Provisions 16
Total non current liabilities

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Trade payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17
Provisions 16
Other current liabilities 18
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Material accounting policies 3
Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

WIf of the Board of Directors of
nee Research Limited

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Rajnish S( Atul Kumar Gupta

AMIT GO

EL
Partner Director Director
M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara

Date: May 8, 2025



PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in X Million, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets
(i) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(ii) Investments - Others
(iii) Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets

w

00~ N

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 11
Current tax assets 12
Other current assets 13
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital 14
Other equity 15
Total equity

Liabilities

Non current liabilities

Provisions 16
Total non current liabilities

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(i) Trade payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17
Provisions 16
Other current liabilities 18
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Material accounting policies 3
Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP d on behalj ﬁf the Board of Directors of

M‘Si/'——‘.’/
AMIT GOEL
Partner
M. No. 500607

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 8, 2025

Rajnish S_'a( Atul Kumar Gupta
Director Director

Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara



PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses:

Employee benefit expense
Depreciation

Other expense

Total expenses

Share of Profit of associate and joint venture

Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Current tax

Deferred tax

Income tax of earlier years
Total tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to the above item
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share
1) Basic (in %)
2) Diluted (in )

Face value per share (in %)

Material accounting policies

19
20

21

23

24

3

Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

* AMIT GOEL
Partner

M. No. 500607
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 8, 2025

Rajnish Sa
]L’iirec.t(ﬁv
Din: 06429468

Place: Gurugram

[ of the Board of Directors of
P1 Life Scienge Research Limited

Y

Atul Kumar Gupta
Director

DIN: 10087955
Place: Vadodara



PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax 773! 1G2.60

Adjustments for :-
Depreciation and amortisation expense (el s

Impairment in Value of Investment 2 Sl
Interest Income on financial assets at amortised cost WCATETA | (15.20)
Share of profit of associate and joint venture (43.11) (104.99)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 47.03 52,99
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (V=:5) (6:70)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets (0.76) (241)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 135 -
Increase / (Decrease) in non-current provisions 032 (0.09)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 0.03 (0.97)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (0:02) e
Increase / (Decrease) in current provisions - (0.01)
Cash generated / (used) from operations before tax 3570 4287
Income taxes paid, net (1F62)! (15:99)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities 21.08 26.88

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Investment in Fixed Deposits having more than 3 months original maturity (=304

Dividend Income =

Interest received {157 520
Net cash generated from investing activities (24.17) (12.91)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from Operating and Investing Activities (3 13,97
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES _
Dividend paid - (29:95)
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities - (29.95)
Net Cash inflow (outflow) from Operating, Investing & Financing Activities {3.09y {15.98)
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (3.09) (15.98)
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalents 4.95

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalents 1.86

i) Cash on hand = = ===
ii) Balance with banks :

-In current accounts 186 4..'95
-In fixed deposits E =
Total 1.86 4.95

The above consolidated statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 "Cash Flow Statemen

Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date /

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP For 14 on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants PI Vife Science R¢search Limited

i R@::ﬁfﬁl\'mso{wn u
i \ -mrrﬁfn:t/ ) X Rajnish S:

M‘/I'I.L/ Atul Kumar Gupta

Partner Director Director
M. No. 500607 Din: 06429468 DIN: 10087955
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Vadodara

Date: May 8, 2025




PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

share capital

Changes in equity share capital during the year

14,97325

1497325

Balance at the end of the reporting year 14.97,325

b. Other equity

14.97

14,97,325

Balance at April 1, 2023 : 5 89.48 435.90 525.38
Profit for the year - 149.00 149.00
Dividend paid S (29.95) (29.95)
Other comprehensive income for the year = (0.10) (0.10)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 118.95 118.95
Balance at March 31, 2024 89.48 554.84 644.33
Profit for the year - 62.15 62.15
Other comprehensive income for the year - (0.07) (0.07)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 62.08 62.08
Balance at March 31, 2025 89.48 616.92 706.40

Accompanying notes 1- 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

For S.S. Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: (00

AMIT GOEL
Partner

M. No. 500607
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 8, 2025

N/NS0044

Rajnish Saf/

Director
Din: 06429468
Place: Gurugram

rd

Atul Kumar Gupta
Director

DIN: 10087955
Place: Vadodara



PI LIFE SCIENCE RESEARCH LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1

a)

b)

€)

d)

€)

3
a)

Corporate Information

PI Life Science Research Limited (the Company) (CIN : U73100DL2004PLC131109) is a company limited by shares, domiciled in India. The company was
incorporated on December 9, 2004, and has its registered office at Singhal Farm House, Near Airforce Station, Rajokri, New Delhi 110038. The company is
wholly owned subsidiary of PI Industries Limited

The principal activities of the Company are Research and Development

Basis of preparation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise Financial Statements of P] Life Science Research Limited and its associates and Joint Venture (the Group™)
for the year ended 3 st March, 2025.

The Group has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in the financial statements unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in all material aspects, in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in
Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act to the extent applicable.
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company in their meeting dated May 8, 2025, and are subject to
shareholder approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the shareholders

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates
(“the functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (‘Z’), which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Current or Non current classification
All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services provided and time between the rendering of services and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities and contingent assets at the date of financial statements, income and expenses
during the period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and assumption judgements having the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are:

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations:

- Recognition of deferred tax assets;

- Useful life and residual value of Property, plant and equipment

- Impairment test of financial and non-financial assets;

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and Group’s interest in associates and joint venture for the year ended March 31, 2025

Equity accounted investees

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies. A joint venture
is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control and has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities

Interests in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction costs
Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and OCI of equity accounted investees until
the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases

The joint venture and associate companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are:
Name of the group Company Country of %voting power held as at March 31, 2025 %voting power held as at March 31, 2024

Incorporation
PI Kumiai Private Limited
(Joint Venture)
Solinnos Agro Sciences Private
Limited (Associate)
PI Flowtech B.V
(Joint venture)

India 50% 50%

India 49% 49%

Netherlands 70% NA
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b)

c)

d)

Property, plant and equipment

i) Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

ii) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values, and is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the Straight Line Method (SLM) based on the useful life of assets estimated by the
Management which coincide with the life specified under Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013, which are as follows:

- Plant and Equipment ) 15 years
- Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
- Office Equipments
iil) Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is derecognised when no future economic benefit benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset or upon disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Revenue Recognition
a)  Sale of services
Revenue from sale of services is recognised over the period of time as per the terms of the contract with customers based on the stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably.

Financial Instruments

i) Initial recognition
The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and
liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables (which do not contain a significant financing component) which are
initially measured at transaction price, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCl, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss and
recognised in other income,

Equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment
by investment basis Fair value gains and losses recognised in OCI are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss. However, dividend on such equity
investments are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

iv) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (which includes borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments)) are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method

v) Derecognition
Financial assets ,
Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain contro! of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire

vi) Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

vii) Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments
Except Trade receivables, the impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Group applies the simplified approach as permitted hy Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade receivables
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4 Other Accounting Policies
a) Employee Benefits

a)

b)

c)

Defined contribution plans

Employees benefits in the form of the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund, Pension scheme and Superannuation Fund are defined contribution schemes.
Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s sole obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks are borne by the employee. The Company recognises contribution
payable to these schemes as an expense, when employees provide services

Defined benefit plans

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plans. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Group’s obligation to provide agreed
benefits to the employees, The related actuarial and investment risks are borne by the Group. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.

The Group provides for its gratuity liability based on actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability as at the Balance Shect date, based on Projected Unit Credit
Method, carried out by an actuary. The Group contributes to the gratuity fund, which are recognised as plan assets. The defined benefit obligation as reduced by
fair value of plan assets is recognised in the Balance Sheet.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense
(income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined
liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss under employee benefit expense.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
oceurs.

Compensated absence

The Group provides for accumulation of compensated absences, employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised compensated absences and utilise them
in future periods or receive cash in lieu thereof as per the Group’s policy. The Group records a liability for compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services

b) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using other valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date

Fair values for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 - This includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices

Level 2 — The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3
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¢) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Contingent liability is not recognised but disclosed in notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, uncertainties and possibility of reimbursement, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is
probable, contingent asset are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

d) Other Income

i) Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss,

ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, and is included in other income in statement of profit and loss

e) Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition:
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded into the Company’s functional currency at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined, Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction

Exchange difference:
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss

f) Income tax

a)

b)

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year after taking credit of the benefits available under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding tax bases used for taxation purposes.

For operations carried out in tax free units, deferred tax assets or Habilities, if any, have been recognised for the tax consequences of those temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends

Group also considers decisions of appropriate authorities and legal advice for recognising taxes.

g) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities from which it eams revenues and incurs expenses and for which
discrete financial information is available. The operating segments are based on the Company’s internal reporting structure and the manner in which operating
results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)

The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the CODM by the Company

h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statements are prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as explained in the Indian Accounting Standard on Statement of Cash Flows (Ind AS -
7). The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activity of the Group are segregated,

i) Earning per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period
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(All amounts in ¥ Million, unless otherwise stated)

n

PROPERTY, PLANT ANID EQUIPMENT

Plant and machinery  Furniture and  Office equipments Total
fixtures

Gross carrying amount
As at beginning of April 01, 2023 24.49 0.05 0.08 24.62
Additions - = = -
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 24.49 0.05 0.08 24.62
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 24.49 0.05 0.08 24.62
Acumulated depreciation
As at beginning of April 01, 2023 21.25 0.03 0.07 21.34
Depreciation charge during the year 0.94 0.00 - 0.95
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 22.19 0.03 0.07 22.29
Depreciation charge during the year 0.49 0.00 - 0.49
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 22.68 0.03 0.07 22.78

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 2.30 0.02 0.01 2.33
As at March 31, 2025 1.81 0.02 0.01 1.84
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6 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Investment in equity instruments (fully paid up)

Unquoted shares

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

(I) Investment in Associate (Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited)*# 96.96 95.98
Name of Entity SOLINNOS AGRO SCIENCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Place of Business INDIA
%AGE OF OWNERSHIP 49%
Accounting Method EQUITY METHOD
(11) Investment in Joint Venture (P[ Kumiai Private Limited)**#
Name of Entity PI KUMIAIL PRIVATE LIMITED 281,18 239.05
Place of Business INDIA
%AGE OF OWNERSHIP 50%
Accounting Method EQUITY METHOD
(1) Investment in Joint Venture (Pl Flowtech BV)™
Name of Entity PI FLOWTECH B.V - -
Place of Business NETHERLANDS
%AGE OF OWNERSHIP 70%
Accounting Method EQUITY METHOD
TOTAL 378.14 335.03

* The Company has a 49% interest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited, whose principal activities are dealing in advisory services relating to registrations, licenses, other regulatory approvals in India

** The Company has a 50% interest in Pl Kumiai Private Limited, whose principal activities are manufacturing and trading of Agri science products, The Company’s interest in P Kumiai Private Limited is

at carrying amount determined using the equity method of accounting,

** The Company holds a 70% ownership interest in PI Flowtech B, V., a Netherlands-incorporated entity; however, no capital contribution had been made toward its share capital as of the reporting date. PI
Flowtech B.V. was initially incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary on June 11, 2024, and was subsequently restructured into a joint venture with GROWCO B.V. on August 28, 2024,

#Share of post acquisition gain / loss has been adjusted in carrying amount

Particulars Asat LOES

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(A) Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited (Associate)
Non-Current Assets 1.18 =
Current Assets 204.46 312,60
Non- Current Liabilities - -
Current Liabilities 7.75 116.70
NET ASSETS 197.90 195.90
Total Income 16.16 2,235.63
Other Expenses 12.93 2,034.21
Profit / (Loss) for the period 3.23 201.41
Tax Expense 1.23 5089
Profit / (Loss) for the period after tax 2.00 150.52
Other Comprehensive Income for the period = =
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 2.00 150.52
Group's share in the total comprehensive income of Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited 0.98 738
Reconciliation of the above ised Fi ial Infor ion to the carrying amount of the interest in recognised in Fi 1S
Net Assets of Associate 197.90 195.90
Proportion of Companies ownership [nterest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited 0.49 0.49
Carrying amount of Group's interest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited 96.96 95.98
(B) Pl Kumiai Private Limited (Joint Venture)
Non-Current Assets 3.31 1.57
Current Assets 784.85 746.44
Non- Current Liabilities % -
Current Liabilities 225.80 269.89
NET ASSETS 562.36 478.12
Total [ncome 746.11 785.50
Other Expenses 632.79 701.03
Profit / (Loss) for the period 113.32 84.47
Tax Expense 29.07 21.99
Profit / (Loss) for the period after tax 84.25 62.48
Other Comprehensive Income for the period - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 84,25 62.48
Group's share in the total comprehensive income of PI Kumiai Private Limited 42.13 31.24
Net Assets of Associate 562.36 478,12
Proportion of Companies ownership Interest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited 0.50 0.50
Carrying amount of Group's interest in Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited 281,18 239.05
Dividend Income - -
281.18 239.05
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As at As at
(i) Investements - Others March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investement in others at Fair value
through Prefit or Loss
Investement in PI Colllabo Tech INC 64.64 64.64
343 (31 March, 2024: 343) equity shares @ JPY 291545 each
Less : Provision for diminution in investment in Collabo Tech Inc (64.64) - (32.32) 32.32
Investement in [nfionic [ndia Pvt Ltd 5.07 5.07
45,273 (31 March, 2024: 45,273) Equity shares @ Rs. 112 each fully paid
TOTAL 5.07 37.39
Apggregate amount of un-quoted investments 69.71 69.71
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments (64.64) (32.32)
OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Security deposits 0.01 0.01
Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 137.68 i 90.55
TOTAL 137.69 90.56
§ DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Plant, property and equipment 0.48 0.52
Other comprehensive income items
- Remeasurements on defined benefit plans 0.01 0.03
A 0.49 0.55
Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits 0.37 0.35
Impairment of investment 9.25 7.40
B 9.62 71.75
Net deferred tax assets TOTAL 10.11 8.30
Movement in deferred tax: As at Recognized in P&L  Recognized in OCI As at
April 1, 2024 March 31, 2025
Deferred tax liabilities
Plant, property and equipment 0.52 (0.04) - 048
- Remeasurements on defined benefit plans 0.03 - (0.02) 001
Sub- Total (a) 0.55 (0.04) (0.02) 0.49
Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits (0.35) (0.02) - (0.37)
Tmpairment of investment (7.40) (1.85) (9.25)
Sub- Total (b) (7.75) » (1.87) | = (9.62)
Net deferred tax assets (a)-(b) 8.30 1.83 (0.02) 10.11
Movement in deferred tax: As at Recognized in P&L  Recognized in OCI As at
April 1,2023 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Plant, property and equipment 0.52 (0.00) - 0.52
Other comprehensive income items (0.01) - 0.04 0.03
Sub- Total (a) 0.51 (0.00) 0.04 0.55
Deferred tax assets
Provision for employee benefits 047 0.12 - (0.35)
Impairment of investment (5.05) (2.35) (7.40)
Sub- Total (b) (5.52) (2.23) - (1.75)

Net deferred tax assets (a)-(b) 6.03 2.23 0.04 8.30
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9

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 16.15 6.70
16.15 6.70
TOTAL 16.15 6.70
Of the above, trade receivable from related parties are given below: (refer note 26)
Total trade receivable from related parties 16.15 6.70
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - -
Net trade receivables 16.15 6.70
Aging of trade receivables as at March 31,2025:
Outstanding for following periods from the due dafe
Unbilled Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
th year
Undisputed trade receivable
Considered good - 16.15 - - - - - 16.15
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - . - - -
credit impaired - - - - - . - -
Disputed trade receivable =
Considered good - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - = -
credit impaired - - - S - = = =
Total - 16.15 - - - - - 16.15
Aging of trade receivables as at March 31,2024:
O ding for following periods from the due date
Unbilled  Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
th year
Undisputed trade receivable
Considered good - 6.70 - - - - - 6.70
which have significant increase in credit risk - - = - - - - -
credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable E
Considered good - . - - : = = &
which have significant increase in credit risk . - . . . = - E
credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total - 6.70 - - - - - 6.70
1) CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
i. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks
-Balances in current account 1.86 4.95
TOTAL 1.86 4.95
11 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months 168.38 171.33
TOTAL 168.38 171.33
12° CURRENT TAX ASSETS i
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Income tax balances ( net of provision ) 1.85 1.22
TOTAL 1.85 1.22
15 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS aenes T =
Current

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Considered good unless stated otherwise
Advances to vendors
Prepaid expenses
Other statutory advances
TOTAL

As at March 31, 2025| As at March 31, 2024

0.08 0.05
4.02 3.29
4.10 3.34
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f.

15

0

EQUITY SHARE CARITAL

Authorised shares

ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

1,20,00,000 (March 31, 2024 : 1,20,00,000) equity shares of 10 each (March 31, 2024 : 2 10 each)

Issued Shares

TOTAL

14,97,325 (March 31, 2024 : 14,97,325) equity shares of 10 each (March 31, 2024 : 2 10 each)

Subscribed & Fully Paid up Shares

14,97,325 (March 31, 2024 : 14,97,325) equity shares of 210 each (March 31, 2024 : Z 10 each)

Total subscribed and fully paid up share capital

As at March 31, 2025
120.00

120.00

14.97
14.97

14.97
14.97

As at March 31, 2024
120.00

120.00

14.97
14.97

14.97
14.97

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Z10 per share (March 31, 2024 Z 10 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligibie to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

Reconciliation of shares

ding at the beg

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

and at the end of the year

Eyuity Shures __
Particulars | Equity Share (No. of Shares) Value of Equity Shares |
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024_ As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Share outstanding at beginning of Year 14,97,325 14,97,325 14.97 14.97
Changes during the year - - - -
Share outstanding at end of Year 14,97,325 14,97,325 14.97 14.97
Subscribed & paid up
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Equity Shares
Name of Shareholders 2024225 - 2023-24 n
No of Shares | % of Holding No of Shares | % of Holding
Pl [ndustries Limited and its nominees 14,97.325 | 100 14,97,325 | 100
Equity Shares held by holding Company
2024-25 2023-24
Name of Shareholders No of Shares | % of Holding No of Shares I % of Holding
PI Industries Limited and its nominees 14.97.325 | 100 14.97.325 | 100
The Company has not bought back any shares issued in consideration other than cash in last 5 years.
Shareholding of Promotors
Details of shareholding by pr £ As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of Promoters Number of | Per ge| Per g Number of Shares Percentage total Percentage of change
Shares total of change number of shares during the year
number of | during the
shares | year
|
PI Industries Limited 14.97.325 100%| - 14.97.325 100% -
OTHER EQUITY
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Securities Premium
Balances at the beginning of the year 89.48 89.48

TOTAL 89.48 89.48
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 396.95 277.89
Addition during the year 62.15 149.00
Less: Interim Dividend paid - (29.95)

TOTAL 459.10 396.95

(I) ltems af other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit Plans
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.15) (0.05)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (0.07) (0.10)

TOTAL 022) {0.15)
TOTAL OTHER EQUITY 548.35 486.28
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16 PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
Long term compensated absences
Gratuity

17 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

Employee payables
Other payable

18 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues payable
19 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations includes
- Scientific & Technical Consultancy Services

20 OTHER INCOMIE

Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost
- Fixed deposits
- Others

Foreign exchange gain

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident & other funds
Gratuity and long term compensated absences
Employees welfare expenses

22 DEPRECIATION

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Power, fuel & water

Repairs to machinery

Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Rental charges

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Auditor remuneration (Refer note no 23 (a))
Provision for diminution in investment
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note no 23 (b))
Legal & professional fees

Bank charges

Business Support services

Non- Current Current
As at As at As at ) As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.30 0.23 0.02 0.02
0.95 0.70 - o
TOTAL 1.25 0.93 0.02 0.02
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.29 0.58
0.54 0.13
TOTAL 0.83 0.71
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.17 0.19
TOTAL 0.17 0.19
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
67.17 - 68.48
TOTAL 67.17 68.48
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
20.01 15.20
0.02
0.01 -
TOTAL 20.04 15.20
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4.30 422
0.24 0.22
0.24 0.21
0.04 0.01
TOTAL 4.82 4.66
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0.49 0.95
TOTAL 0.49 0.95
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1.62 1.48
1.40 0.90
0.18 0.16
0.47 0.31
1.39 1.32
0.02 0.01
0.04 0.06
0.09 0.07
32.32 9.63
1.16 0.97
4.63 0.07
0.02 0.01
4.33 547
TOTAL 47.67 20.46
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23(a) Auditors’ remuneration For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
-Statutory audit fees 0.06 0.04
- Limited review fees 0.03 0.03
TOTAL 0.09 0.07
23(b) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE (OSR)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Disclosures of CSR expenditures is given below :
Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.16 0.97
Amount of expenditure incurred 1.16 0.97
Amount of shortfall for the year - -
Amount of cummulative shortfall at the end of the year -
Total of previous years shortfall - -
The Company has contributed required amount to PI Foundation amounting to INR 1.16 Mn., which has been spent by PI Foundation on ongoing projects.
24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
a) Income tax expense recognized in profit and loss For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax expense
Current tax on profits for the year 16.98 17.21
Adjustment of current tax for prior year - (1.38)
Total Current tax expense 16.98 15.83
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1.79) (2.23)
Net Deferred tax expense (1.79) (2.23)
Total Income tax expense 15.19 13.60
b) Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 0.02 0.04
Income tax charged to Other comprehensive income = 0.02 0.04
c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Accounting profit before tax (excluding share in profit of associate and Joint venture) 34.23 57.61
Tax at India's statutory income tax rate @ 25.168% (March 31, 2024: 25.168%) 8.62 14.50
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years - (1.38)
Dividend = (7.21)
Other Expenses 17.42 34.11
Income Tax Expense 15.19 13.60
Effective tax Rate % 44.4% 23.6%
25 EARNING PER SHARE
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Net profit for basic & diluted EPS 62.15 149.00
b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 14,97,325 14,97,325
Total number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 14,97,325 14,97,325
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period - Basic 14,97,325 14,97,325
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year - Diluted 14,97,325 14,97,325
Basic (%) 41.50 99.51
Diluted (%) 41.50 99.51
Face value per share () 10.00 10.00
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26 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party disclosure, as required by Indian Accounting Standard-24, is as below:

A) List of Related Parties

i) Enterprises which control the entity PI Industries Limited

ii) Enterprises under common control PILL Finance and Investments Limited
PI Japan Co. Limited
PI Bioferma Private Limited
PI Health Sciences Limited
Jivagro Limited
PI Fermachem Private Limited
PI Industries Management Consultancies LLC

iii) Associate & Joint Venture Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited (Associate)
PI Kumiai Private Limited (Joint Venture)

PI Flowtech B.V. (Subsdiary w.e.f. June 11, 2024 till August 27, 2024 and Joint Venture w.e.f. August 28,2024)

iv) Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives:-

a) Mr. Mayank Singhal Director (till November 07, 2023)

b) Mr. Rajnish Sarna Director

¢) Mr. Rajender Dev Kapoor Director

d) Mr. Atul Kumar Gupta Director (w.e.f. November 06, 2023)

v) Enterprises over which KMP and their relatives are able to exercise significant influence
Trust PI Foundation

B) The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Nature of Transaction 2024-25 2023-24
Transactions during the period Transactions during the period Balance outstanding
Balance outstanding Dr / (Cr)
Received/Sales | Paid/Purchase Received/Sales Paid/Purchase Dr/(Cr)

Transactions with :-

Holding Company- Pl Industries Limited
Sale of Services 67.17 - 16.15 68.48 - 6.70
Rent, electricity and other
miscellancous payment - 3.02 - - 2.80 -
Dividend Paid - = - 29.95

Business Support Services - 0.06 - 0.02 (0.02)
Associate - Solinnos Agro Sciences Private Limited.

Business Support Services - 4. 5.47 -

i
L
70
o
]

Joint Venture - Pl Kumiai Pvt. Ltd. 28.65 - -
Dividend Paid - » 5

Trust - PI Foundation
Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution .16 - - 0.97 -

¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The services rendered to and from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

27 ENMIPLONED BENEFITS

The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held (where funded) in separately administered funds. For defined
contribution schemes the amount charged to the statements of profit or loss is the total of contributions payable in the year.

Provident fund

Gratuity Plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, PI Life Science Research Ltd contribute to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides
a lump sum payment to the employees at the time of retirement or resignation (after 5 years of continued services of employment), being an amount based on the respective
employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company. Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised in
full for the benefit obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Long term leave encashment
The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the pg
service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of servi
period using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes

iod in which the employees render the related
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a) Defined Contribution Plans:-
The Company has recognised an expense of Z 0.24 (Previous Year ¥ 0.22) towards the defined contribution plan.

b) Defined benefits plans - as per actuarial valuation

I

VII

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Non -Funded Non -Funded
Particulars Gratuity Long term Gratuity Long term
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences
Change in present value of obligation during the year
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 0.70 025 0.78 0.28
Total amount included in profit and loss:
- Current service cost 0.11 0.03 0.08 0.05
- Interest cost 0.05 0.02 0.06 0.02
Remeasurement related to long term employee benefit:
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from:
- Financial assumption - 0.01 = -
- Experience judgement - 0.02 (0.03)
Total amount included in OCI:
Remeasurement related to gratuity:
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from:
- Financial assumption 0.01 - = =
- Experience judgement 0.08 0.16 -
Others
Benefits paid - (0.38) (0.07)
Present value of obligation as at year-end 0.95 0.33 0.70 0.25

Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Non -Funded Non -Funded
Particulars Gratuity Long term Gratuity Long term
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences

Present Value of obligation as at year-end 095 0.33 0,70 0.25
Fair value of plan assets at year -end - - - -
Funded status {Surplus/(Deficit)} (0.95) (0.33) (0.70) (0.25)
Net asset/(liability) (0.95) (0.33) (0.70) (0.25)

Bifurcation of net liability at the end of the year

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Non -Funded Non -Funded
Particulars Gratuity Long term Gratuity Long term
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences

Current liability - 0.02 0.07 0.02
Non-current liability 095 0.30 0.63 0.23
Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 6.99% 6.99% 722% 722%

Expected rate of return on plan assets

Mortality table
Salary escalation

IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
10.00% 10.00%

The expected contribution for defined benefit plan for the next financial year will be Nil.

Sensitivity analysis
Gratuity

Discount rate (.50 % movement)
Future salary growth ( .50 % movement)
Long term compensated absences

Discount rate (.50 % movement)
Future salary growth (.50 % movement)

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Within the next 12 months
Between 1-5 years
Beyond 5 years

IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
10.00% 10.00%

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Increase [ Decrease Increase [ Decrease
(0.03) 0.03 (0.02) 0.02
0.03 (0.03) 0.02 (0.02)
For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Increase I Decrease Increase | Decrease
(0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.0t
0.01 o.on 0.01 (0.01)
For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Non -Funded Non -Funded
Gratuity Long term Gratuity Long term
Compensated Compensated
Absences Absences
- 0.02 0.07 0.02
0.44 0.12 0.30 0.11
051 0.18 0.33 0.12
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28 RATIO ANALYSIS
S.No. Ratio Numerator Denominator As at March  As at March % Variance Reason for variance
31,2025 31,2024
1 Current ratio Current asset Current liabilites 74.84 204.12 -63% Due to increase in Trade
Payables
2 Debt-Equity ratio Borrowing Total equity . - 0% Not Applicable
3 Debt Service Coverage ratio Earnings before interest, taxes, Debt Serive = Long term - - 0% Not Applicable
depreciation & amortization debt +Interest payment +
lease
4 Return on Equity ratio Profit after tax (PAT) Average equity 9% 25% -64% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Impairment of
Financial Assets)
5 Inventory Tumover ratio  Cost of goods sold Average inventory - = 0% Not Applicable
6 Receivables Turnover ratio  Sales Average receivable 5.88 20.44 -71% Due to increase in average trade
receivables.
7 Payables Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average payable - - 0% Not Applicable
8 Net Capital Turnover ratio  Sales Net working capital 0.35 0.37 -4%
(CA-CL)
9 Net Profit ratio Profit after tax (PAT) Revenue from operation 92% 217% -57% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Impairment of
Financial Assets).
10 Return on Capital Eamings before interest and taxes ( Total equity + Borrowings 11% 25% -57% Reduced due to increase in other
Employed EBIT) expenses (Impairment of
Financial Assets)
11 Return on Investment Earnings before interest and taxes Average total assets 9% 18% -50% Reduced due to increase in other
expenses (Impairment of
) Financial Assets)
28 MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006
Particular March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Amount Amount Amount Amount

Principal amount and Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as on 31st March

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act.

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

Further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
ubove are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under Section 23 of MSMED Act
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30° FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

Financial instruments by category

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

FVTPL | FVTOCI [Amortised Cost| FVTPL |

FVTOCI

| Amortised Cost

Financial assets

Non-current assets

Investments 5.07 - 37.39 - -

Other financial asset - 137.69 - - 90.56

Current assets

Trade receivable - 16.15 - - 6.70

Cash and cash equivalents . 1.86 - - 495

Other balances with Banks - 168.38 - - 171.33
5.07 324.08 37.39 - 273.54

Financial liabilities

Current

Trade Payables - 1.55 - - -

Other financial liabilities - 0.83 - - 0.71

- 2.38 - - 0.71

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade payables and current financial liabilities approximate
their carrying amount, largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. Fair value for all other non-current assets is equivalent to the

amortised cost, interest rate on them is equivalent to the market rate of interest.
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management framework

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

= Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
= Market risk

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation.

Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks:

The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks have low credit risk based on good external credit ratings of
counterparties. Impairment on cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks has been measured on the 12-month expected credit loss basis and

reflects the short maturities of the exposures.
Exposure to credit risk:

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment losses (if any) recognized represent the maximum credit exposure.

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected

cash flows.

(a) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and

include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

3-12 months

1-2 years

2-5 years

More than 5
years

As At March 31, 2025 Total 3 months or
less

Non-derivative financial liabilitiés”?

Trade Payables 1.55 1.55

Other financial liabilities 0.83 0.83

Total 2.38 2.38
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Contractual cash flows

As At March 31, 2024 Total 3 months or 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years More than 5
less years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities 0.71 0.71 - - - -
Total 0.71 0.71 - - - -
iii. Market risk

32

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters while ootimisine the return.

Foreign Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to any material foreign currency risk as at the reporting date.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Company's investments are primarily in fixed deposits which are short term in nature and do not expose it to interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Fixed-rate instruments

Other non current financial assets 137.69 90.56
Bank balances 168.38 171.33
Total 306.07 261.89

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Price risk
The Company is not exposed to any price risk as at the reporting date.

OPERATING SEGMENT

An operating segment is defined as a component of the entity that represents business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses and
for which discrete financial information is available. The operating segments are based on the Company’s internal reporting structure and the manner
in which operating results are reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

The Company has evaluated the applicability of segment reporting and has concluded that since the Company is operating in research and development
activities and is being reviewed by the CODM on the same lines, accordingly the Company has only one reportable business segment.

I Revenue:
A. Information about revenues from products and services:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Scientific & Technical Consultancy Services 67.17 68.48
Total 67.17 68.48
For the year ended For the year ended
B. Geographical areas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 67.17 68.48
67.17 68.48
C. Revenues from Operations amounted to more than 10% of the Company's revenue from a customer, i.e. Rs. 67.17 (March 31, 2024 - X 68.48 )
I The total of non-current assets (other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and investments accounted for using equity method), broken down

by location of the assets, is shown in the table below:

As At March 31, 2025 As At March 31, 2024

India 1.84 233
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33 There is no contingent liability and commitments as on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: Nil).

34  As per the information available with the Management and as certified by them, there is no outstanding Capital and other Commitment as on March
31, 2025 & March 31, 2024.

35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business. The Company manages its capital and makes adjustment to it in light of the changes in economic and market conditions.

36 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - AS LEASE
The Company has leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the 'short-term lease' recognition exemptions as per Ind AS 116

For the year For the year
ended March ended March 31,
31, 2025 2024
-Short term Lease payments recognised in Statement of profit and loss 1.39 1.32

37 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and date of authorization of these financial statements.

38 OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(i) The Company do not have any immovable property which is not held in the name of Company.
(i1) The Company has not provided any loan or advances to specified persons.
(iii) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property. '
(iv) The Company has not availed any facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
(v) The Company is not declared Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or any Financial Institution.
(vi) The Company do not have any transactions and balances with struck-off companies.
(vii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(viii) The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(ix) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(x) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961).

(xi) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(xii) The Company has widely used SAP ERP as its accounting software for maintaining its books of Account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and has operated throughout the year. The audit trail has not been tampered with and has been preserved in accordance with
applicable statutory record retention requirements. At the database level, the audit trail captures only the modified values, including any direct changes
made at the database level. The Company has necessary internal controls and review process to ensure that there are no unauthorized access and
unauthorized changes.
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